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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
Report on the Audit of Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited (‘the
Company'), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and Loss
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of Changes
in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including material accounting
policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) in
the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS') specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive income), its
cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India ('ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that
the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors’ report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial
statements, or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The accompanying financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of Directors.
The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134({5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation and presentation of these financial statements that give a true and fair
view of the financial position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in
equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. This responsibility also includes
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseseing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
are also:

« |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

« Obtain an understanding of internal control retevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i} of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

+ Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to medify ‘our:gpinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
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evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern; and

« Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2023 were audited by the
predecessor auditors, S.R. Batliboi & Co. LLP, who have expressed an unmodified opinion on those
financial statements vide their audit report dated 14 July 2023.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are
not applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section
2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report} Order, 2020 (‘the Order’} issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the Annexure A a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure A, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying financial
statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph
14(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
{as amended).

c¢) The financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133
of the Act;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f)y The modification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in paragraph 14(b) above on reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and
paragraph 14{h){vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g} of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended},

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure B wherein we have expressed unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 {as amended). in our opinion and {o the best
of our information and according to the expl tions given to us:
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i.  The Company does not have any pending litigation which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024,

i. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024;

i.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024.

iv.(a) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 46 {iv) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from borrowed funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by
the Company to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities ('the
intermediaries'), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the
intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {(‘the Ultimate
Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the fike on behalf the Ultimate
Beneficiaries;

(b) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed
in note 46 (v) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from
any person(s} or entity(ies), including foreign entities {‘the Funding Parties’), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether
directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

(c) Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us io believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses {a} and (b) above contain any material
misstatement. ‘

v.  The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended 31 March 2024.

Vi, Based on our examination which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial
year commencing on 1 April 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books
of account which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has
operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except
that, the audit trail feature was not enabled at database level for accounting software to log
any direct data changes, as described in note 45 to the financial statements. Further, during
the course of our audit, we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being
tampered with in respect of the accounting software where such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Deepak Mittal
Partner
Membership No.: 503843
UDIN: 24503843BKFARM4180

Place: Gurugram
Date: 3 September 2024
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

In terms of the information and exptanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of
account and records examined by us in the normal course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and
belief, we report that:

(i)

(it}

(ifi)

Chartered Accouniants

(a) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including
guantitative details and situation of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of
right-of-use assets.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible
assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification of its property, plant and
equipment and relevant details of right of use asset under which the assets are physically
verified in a phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our opinion, is
reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets. In
accordance with this program, certain property, plant and equipment and relevant details
of right of use asset were verified during the year and no material discrepancies were
noticed on such verification.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the
Company is the lessee, and the lease agreements are duly executed in favor of the lessee).
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(c) of the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Order’) is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has not revalued its property, plant and equipment (including right-of-use
assets) or intangible assets during the year.

(e} No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Gompany for holding any
benami property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as
amended) and rules made thereunder.

(a) The Company does not hold any inventary. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii}(a) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees by
banks or financial institutions on the basis of security of current assets at any point of time during
the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ii){b) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not provided any guarantee or security or granted any loans or advances
in the nature of loans to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships during the year.
Further, the Company has made investments into company during the year,.in respect of
which:

(a) The Company has not provided any loans or provided any advances in the nature of loans,
or guarantee, or security to any other entity during the year. Accordingly, reporting under
clauses 3(iii}(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b} In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
investments made are, prima facie, not prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

(c) The Company does not have any outstanding loans and advances in the nature of loans at
the beginning of the current year nor has granted any loans or advances in the nature of
loans during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(iiiy(c), 3(iiiy(d), 3(iii)(e) and
3(iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable mpany.
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024 (cont’d)

(iv) The Company has not entered into any transaction covered under section 185 of the Act.
As the Company is engaged in providing infrastructural facilities as specified in Schedule
VI of the Act, provisions of section 186 except sub-section (1) of the Act are not applicable
to the Company. In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given
to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of sub-section (1) of section 186 of
the Act in respect of investments, as applicable.

(v) In our opinion, and aceording to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be
deposits within the meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companias (Acceptance
of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vi) The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1)
of section 148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly
reviewed the books of account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by
the Central Government for the maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that,
prima facie, the prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained.
However, we have not made a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)(a) in our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax,
provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income-tax and other material statutory dues,
as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no undisputed amounts payable in
respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more than six months from
the date they hecame payable.

{(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues
referred to in subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the approptiate
authorities on account of any dispute.

e

(viii) According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act,
1961 (43 of 1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted
in repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including representation received
from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit procedures, we report
that the Company has not been declared a willful defauiter by any bank or financial
institution or government or any government authority.

(¢) In our opinion and accerding to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not raised any money by way of term loans during the year and there has been no
utilisation during the current year of the term loans obtained by the Company during any
previous years. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company.

{d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not raised any funds on short term basis during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(ix)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not have any
subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix){e) and clause
3(ix)(f) of the Order is not applicable to the Company .-

Chanered Accountanis




Walker Chandiok &Co LLP

Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024 (cont’d)

(x) (@) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer
(including debt instruments), during the year, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the
Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of

_the records of the Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private

placement of shares or (fully, partially or optionally) convertible debentures during the year.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xi) (@) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no
fraud by the Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the
period covered by our audit.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies (Audit
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the Central Government for the period covered by our audit,

(c) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to
us by the management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the
Company during the year.

{xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions
entered into by the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the
Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the financial statements
etc., as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures
specified in Companies {indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section
133 of the Act. Further, according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
is not required to constitute an audit committee under section 177 of the Act.

{xiv)(a) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
an internal audit system which is commensurate with the size and nature of its business as
required under the provisions of section 138 of the Act. '

(by We have considered the reports issued by the Internal Auditors of the Company till date for the
period under audit.

(xv}  According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section
192 of the Act are not applicable to the Company.

(xvi}{a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India
Act, 1934. Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a), (b) and {c) of the Order are not
applicable to the Company.

(d) Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management
of the Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank)
Directions, 2018) does not have any CIC.

(xvii) The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the
immediately preceding financiat year.

Chariered Accountanis
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Annexure A referred to in paragraph 13 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the
members of Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024 {cont'd)

(xviii) There has been resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and based on the information

{(xix)

(oa(a)

(xxi)

and explanations given to us by the management and the response received by us pursuant to our
communication with the outgoing auditors, there have been no issues, objections or concerns
raised by the outgoing auditors.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios,
ageing and expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liahilities,
other information in the financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors
and management and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions,
nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists
as on the date of the audit report indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities
existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report
and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period
of one year from the balance sheet date, wilt get discharged by the company as and when they fall
due.

According fo the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts towards
Corporate Social Responsibility pertaining to other than ongoing projects as at end of the current
financial year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(a) of the Order is not appficable to the
Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts towards
Corporate Social Responsibility pertaining to any ongoing project as at end of the current financial
year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(xx)(b} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The reporting under clause 3(xxi} of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone
financial statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of
said clause under this report.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Membership No.: 503843
UDIN: 24503843BKFARM4180

Place: Gurugram

Date:

3 September 2024

Charigred Accountants




Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Juniper
Green Sigma Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the financial
statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the

Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the financial statements of Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited (‘the
Company') as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial
Controls

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria
established by the Company considering the essential component of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India. These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the
orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’'s
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial
information, as required under the Act. .

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards
on Auditing issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('1CAl’) prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements, and the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting (‘the Guidance Note'} issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require
that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
were established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit
of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement,: including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
T error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements. :

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements include those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,

Chartered Accountanis
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Juniper
Green Sigma Private Limited on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024,

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controts with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadeguate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024,
based on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note
on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Deepak Mittal

Partner

Membership No.: 503843
UDIN: 24503843BKFARMA4180

Place: Gurugram
Date: 3 September 2024
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JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40300DL2019PTC3468006

Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024

(All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Partleuturs Notes March 31, 2024 Mareh 31, 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment 3 42,466,92 44,469,353
Right-of-use assets 3 3,547.96 3,712,52
Intangible assets 4 (.54 -
Financial assels
Investment 5 6,000.00 -
Other financial assels 6 2,090.34 1,148.73
Non current tax assels (pet) 7 48.17 47.78
Other non current assels 8 1.07 1.44
Sub total (A) 54,155,060 49,379.82
Current nssets
Financial asscts
Security deposit 9 18,14 17.40
Investments 10 1,524.52 918.39
Trade receivables i 1,015.81 713.26
Cash and cash equivalenis 2 111,24 760.49
Other bank balances 13 3,084.86 5,833,67
Other current financial assels 14 29,16 613
Other current assets 15 72,46 90.99
Sub total (B) 5,856.16 8,395,33
TOTAL ASSETS (A+B) 60,011.16 57,7758.15
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Eguity share capifal 16 7,205.00 7,205,00
Other equily 17 5,512,88 2,895.37
Sub total (C} 12,717.88 10,100.37
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 8 38,984.96 40,697.12
Lease Habilitics 37 3,359.38 3,288,75
Provisions 19 11,76 17.11
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 20 2,290,22 1,399.98
Sub: total (D) 44,646.32 45,402.96
Current linbilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 21 §,721.19 1,606.18
Trade paysbles 22
totat outstanding dues of miero enterpriges and small enterprises 30.84 18.02
total outstanding dues of creditors other than micre enterprises and small enterprises 118.51 99.96
Other currenf financial liabilities 23 704,83 513.58
Other current liabilities 24 62.29 21.23
Provisions 25 9,30 12,85
Sub total {(E) 2,646.96 2,271.82
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES (C+D+E) 60,011.16 57.775.15
Summary of material accounting policy infonmalion 2

The accompanying noles are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co, LLP
Charlered Accountants
Firm Registration No.; 001076N/N500013

Deepak Mittal
Pariner
Membership No. 503843
Place: Gurugram
Date: September 03, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Diregtors
Juniper Green Sigma Private Lipnited

y

Ankush Malik
Director

DIN: (7978604
Place: Gurugram
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Rishika Kapoor
Company Secretary
M. No. - A43726
Place; Gurugram
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JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40300DL2019PTC346806

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

For the year ended For the year ended

Particul N
Arfieutars otes March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Income
Revenue from operations 26 9,649.12 8,444.48
Other income 27 506.42 443.82
Total income 10,155.54 8,888.30
Expenses
Employee benefits expense 28 159.91 252.69
Finance cost 29 3,684 .80 3,845.13
Depreciation and amortization expense 30 2,157.54 2,158.98
Other expenses 3l 644.14 558.35
Total expenses 6,646.45 6,815.15
Profit before tax 3,509,09 2,073.15
Tax expense 32
Current tax expense - -
Deferred tax expense 890.58 525.48
Total tax expeunse 890.58 525.48
Profit after tax (A) 2,618.51 1,547.67
Other comprehensive income
ltems that will not be reclassified to profit and loss in subsequent periods :
Re-measurement gain on defined benefit plans {1.34) @247
Less: Income tax related to above itemn 0.34 0,55
Other comprehensive inceme for the year, net of tax (B) (1.00} (1.62)
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A+B) 2,617.51 1,546.05
Earnings per equity share: [Nominal value of share : T 10} 33
(1) Basic (%) 3.63 2.15
(2) Diluted (3) 3.63 2.15
Summary of material accounting policy information 2

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per aur report of even date
For Walker Chandiok & Co, LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Deepak Mittal
Partner
Membership No, 503843
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 03, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Birectors of
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Director
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Director
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JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40300D1.2H9PTC346806

Statement of change in equity for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

{a) Equity share capital

Particulars Number of share ¥ in lakhs
At April 01, 2022 7,20,50,000 7,205.00
Issue of share capital during the year - .
Balance at March 31, 2023 7,20,50,000 7,205.00
Issue of share capital during the year - -
Balance at March 31, 2024 7,26,50,000 7,205.00
(b) Other equity
Re;c:::ls; l:ml Equity component of
Particulars compound financial Total

Retained instruments

earnings
At April 01, 2022 477.68 871,64 1,349.32
Profit for the year 1,547.67 - 1,547.67
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (1.62) - {1.62)
Balance at March 31, 2023 2,023.73 871.64 2,895.37
Profit for the year 2,618.5( - 2,618.51
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (1.00}) - (1.00)
Balance at March 31, 2024 4,641.24 871.64 5,512.88

Summary of material accounting policy information (refer note 2)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No.: Q01076N/N500013

Deepak Mittal
Partner
Membership No. 503843
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 03, 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Juniper Green Sigima Private Limited

Ankush Malik
Director

DIN: 07978604
Place: Gurugram

Rishika Kapoor
Company Secretary
M. No. - A43726
Place: Gurugram

Date; September 03, 2024

Rdbin Batra
Director

DIN: 07688793
Place: Gurugram




JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40300D1L.2019PTC346806

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in  lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars For the Year Ended For the Year Ended
March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Operating activities
Profit before tax 3,509.09 2,073.15
Adjustment to reconcile profit before tax to net cash flows
Depreciation and amortization expense 2,157.54 2,158.98
Interest income on fixed deposit and others (391.13) (402.64)
Profit on sale of mutual fund (83.54) (23.34)
Net gain on investment in mutual fund measwred at fair value through profit and loss (11.90) (7.26)
Foreign exchange loss (net) - 1.59
Loss on sate of property, plant and equipment 7.04 -
Interest on loan from financial institution 2,920.93 3,039.80
Interest expense on lease liabilities 294.16 284,33
Interest on loan from holding company 468.99 468.99
Other borrowing cost {hedging cost, bank guarantee and other charges) 0.78 52.01
§,871.96 7.645.61
Working capital adjustments:
Decrease/(Increase) in other financial assets 0.07 (1,095.90)
(Increase)/ Decrease in trade receivables (302.55) 65.27
Decrease/(Increase) in other assets 18.90 (0.43)
(Decrease)/Increase in provisions (10.24) 14,28
Increase/{Decrease) in frade payables 31.37 (8.60)
Increase/{ Decrease) in other currenl financial liabilities 3.53 (0.87)
Increase in other current liabilities 41.06 12.26
8,654.10 6,631.62
Income tax paid (nel of refund) {0.39) 7.33
Net cash flow generated from operating activities (A) 8,653,71 6,638.95
Investing activities
Purchase of property plant and equipment (140.51) {159.79)
Proceeds on disposal of property, plant and equipment 18.15 -
Investment in Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares of related party (6,000.00% -
Interest received 410,45 38246
Investment in mutual fund (net) {510.69) (737.57)
Investment in bank deposits (net) 1,819.04 (791.34)
Net cash flow (used in) investing activities B) (4.403.56) (1,306.24)
Financing activities
Repayment of loan from financial institution {1,606.19) (1,627.62)
Payment of lease liabilities {223.53) {165.93)
Other borrowing cost paid (bank guarantee and other incidental charges) (0.78) (52.01)
Interest paid on loan(s) (3,068.93) (3,401.81)
Net cash flow used in financing activities ) (4,899.43) (5,247.37)
Net (decrease)/ increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (649.28) 85.34
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 760.49 675.15
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year* 111,21 760.49
*Components of cash and cash equivalents (refer note 12)
Cash on hand 0.14 0.14
Balances with schedule banks:
- On currenl accounis 111,07 4531
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months - 715.04
Total cash and cash equivalents 111,21 760.4%
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JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40300DL2019PTC346806

Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are slated in T lakhs, unless otherwise slated)

Notes:
There are no non cash movements in financing & investing activities excepl those disclosed above and under note 13

Summary of material accounting policy information {refer note 2)
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
As per our report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co, LLP For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited

Firm Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Deepak Mittal Ankush Malik Robin Batra
Partner z Director Director
Membership No. 503843 DIN: 07978604 DIN: 07688793
Place; Gurugram Place: Gurugram Place: Gurugram

Date: September 03, 2024

i

Rishika Kapoor
Company Secretary
M. No, - A43726
Place: Gurugram

Date: September 03, 2024




Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
CIN-U40300DL2019PTC346806

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

L,

2.1

Corporate information

Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited is a private Company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013. The Company is subsidiary of Juniper Green Energy Private Limited. The registered office of
the Company is located at F-9, First Floor, Manish Plaza 1, Plot No. 7, MLU, Sector 10, Dwarka, New Delhi-110075.

The Company was incorporated on March 1, 2019. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of setting up,
operating, maintaining generation, supply and sale of power in the field of renewable energy. The Company had
commissioned 120 MW Solar Power Project in the state of Gujarat (“Project”) and electricity generated from it is sold to
Gujarat Urja Vikas Nigam Limited.

The financial statements were authorized for issue in accordance with the resolution of the Board of Directors dated
September 03, 2024,

Basis of Preparation and Material accounting policy information

Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS)
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 read with the section 133 of the Companies Act,
2013 (as amended from time to time) and presentation requirements of Division II of Schedule TII to the Companies Act,
2013, (Ind AS compliant Schedule III), as applicable to the financial statements.

The financial statements have been prepared on the accrual and going concern basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except
for derivative financial instruments and certain financial assets and financial labilities which have been measured at fair
value or revalued amount as explained in relevant accounting policies,

The financial statements are presented in Rupees in lakhs, except when otherwise indicated.

2,2 Material accounting policy information

a) Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgments,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are based on the management's best
knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes
requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or liabilities in future periods.

b) All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle of
12 months which is based on the nature of business of the Company and other criteria set out in Schedule III to the
Companies Act, 2013, Current assets do not include elements which are not expected to be realized within 12 months
and Current labilities do not include items which are due after 12 months, the period of 12 months being reckoned from
the reporting date.

¢) Amended Accounting Standards (Ind AS) and interpretations effective during the year

i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounting policies and

the correction of errors, It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates,

The amendments had no impact on the Company.




Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
CIN-U40300DL2019PTC346806
Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

d)

€)

i) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1
The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the
requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’
accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
measurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company’s financial statements.

iii) Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to Ind AS 12

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies
to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The amendment had no impact on the Company.,
Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer
al an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or
services, The Company has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements, because it typically
controls the goods or services before transferring them to the customer.

Revenue is measured based on transaction price, which is the consideration, adjusted for discounts and other incentives, if
any, as specified in the contract with the customer, Revenue also excludes taxes or other amounts collected form customers.

. Sale of Power: The Company’s revenue from sale of electricity generally includes one performance obligation. The
revenue from supply of power is recognized over time when electricity is transferred to the customer i.e. on the supply
of units generated from the plant to the grid. The revenue is recognized at the agreed Lariff rate as per the terms of the
Power Purchase Agreements ("PPA") entered into with the customer.

Revenue from operations on account of change in law events in terms of PPA’s with customers is accounted for based
on the orders/ reports of respective regulatory authorities and management best estimates wherever required.

- Sale of Verified Emission Reductions (VER): Revenue from sale of VER is recognised when following conditions
have been satisfied:

i, The significant risks and rewards of ownership of the VER have been passed on to the buyer;

ii. The amount of revenue can be measured reliably;

iii. It is probable that the economic benefits associated with the sale of VER will flow to the entity; and
iv. The cost incurred or to be incurred in respect to sale of VER can be measured reliably.

- Contract Assets: A contract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferved to the
customer. If the Company performs by transferring goods or services to a customer before the customer pays
consideration or before payment is due, a contract asset is recognized for the earned consideration that is conditional.

- Trade Receivables: A receivable represents the company’s right to an amount of consideration that is uncenditional
(i.c., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due).

Property Plant and Equipment (PPL)

Property, plant and equipment is stated at cost, and subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment other than
frechold land are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. The cost
comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the
asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase




Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only
when il is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in statement of profit or loss as incurred,

Subsequent Costs

The cost of replacing a part of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the carrying amount of the item
of property, plant and equipment, if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the part will flow to
the Company and its cost can be measured reliably with the carrying amount of the replaced part getting derecognised.
The cost for day-to-day servicing of property, plant and equipment are recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss as and
when incurred.

Depreciation
Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on a straight-line basis, computed on the basis of useful lives
(as set-out below) prescribed in Schedule II to the Act:

Useful life
Assetls category (in years)
Plant and Equipment * 25
Office equipment 5
Furniture and fixtures 10
Vehicles 8
Computers 3

* The useful life of plant & equipment is different from the useful life as prescribed under Part C of Schedule 11 of the
Companies Act, 2013. The Company, based on technical assessment made by internal expert, has estimated the usefui life
of solar power project as 25 years and believes that it reflects fair approximation of the period over which the asset will
generate economic benefit and is likely to be used.

The identified components are depreciated over their useful lives; the remaining asset is depreciated over the life of the
principal asset. The assets residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each financial year end or whenever there are
indicators for impairment and adjusted prospectively.

Derecognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the
asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
the income statement when the asset is derecognized. The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of |
property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate. |

f) Leases

The Company assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

Company as a lessee

The company applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases
of low-value assets. The company recognizes lease liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing
the right to use the underlying assets.

i) Right-of-use assets
The company recognizes right-of-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e., the date the underlying asset is

available for use), Right-of-use assets are measured al cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(ANl amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

recognized, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease
incentives received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and the
estimated useful lives of the assets are follows:

+  Leasehold Land 29.5 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset. The right-of-use assets are also
subject to impairment.

i} Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives recejvable, variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts
expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Company and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lcase
term reflects the Company exercising the option to terminate.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable, After the commencement
date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in the lease payments (c.g., changes to future payments resulting from a change in an index or rate used to determine
such lease payments) or a change in the assessment of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

iv) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Company applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement date and do not contain a purchase option), It also applies the lease of
low-value assets recognition exemption to leases of office equipment that are considered to be low value. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low value assels are recognized as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,

g) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of a qualifying asset if they are directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of that asset. Capitalization of borrowing costs commences when the activities to prepare the
asset for its intended use or sale are in progress and the expenditures and borrowing costs are incurred. Borrowing costs
ate capitalized until the assets arc substantially completed for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period they occur, Borrowing cost includes interest, amortization of ancillary costs incurred in connection
with the arrangement of borrowings, other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds and
exchange differences arising from foreign currency borrowings to the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the
borrowing cost.

h) Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

Financial Assets

Initial Recognition and Measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value
through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or conventigg in the
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

marketplace (regular way trades) are recognized on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company comumits to purchase or
sell the asset.

Subsequent Measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

e Debt instruments at amortized cost

¢ Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FYTOCI)

e Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through statement of Profit & Loss {FVTPL)
e Equity instruments, measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)

Debt instruments at amortized cost

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortized cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business mode! whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the
Statement of Profit and Loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The
category applies to the Company’s trade receivables, unbilled revenue, other bank balances, security deposits etc.

Derecognition
A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset) is primarily derecognized
(i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

a)  The contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or

b) The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset or has assumed an
obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’
arrangement; and Either (a) the Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b)
the Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has
transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the
Company continues to recognize the asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. In that case,
the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a
basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred assel is measured at the lower of the original
carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition

of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit risk exposure:

e Financial asscts that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortized cost e.g. deposits, trade receivables and bank
balances

e Financial asset that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI

e Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that result from {ransactions that
are within the scope of Ind AS 11 and Ind AS 18,
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The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance for trade receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognizes
impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines whether there has
been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, twelve
month ECL is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is
used. If, in the subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognizing impairment loss allowance based on
a twelve month ECL.,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument, The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events on a financial instrument
that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and
all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original FIR, When estimating
the cash flows, an entity is required to consider:

e All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and similar options) over the
expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when the expected life of the financial instrument
cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is required to use the remaining contractual term of the financial
instrument

o Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its
trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade
receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognised during the period is recognised as income/ expense in the
statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head ‘other expenses’ in the statement of profit and loss.
The balance sheet presentation for financial instruments is described below:

For financial assets measured al amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance i.¢. as an integral part of the measurement
of those assets in the balance sheet, The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write off criteria,
the Company does not reduce impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial instruments on the basis of
shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases
in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.

Non derivative financial liabilities

Initial Recognition and Measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables. All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of 1oans and borrowings,
net of directly attributable transaction costs. The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans
and borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:

Financial labilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon inilial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Financial liabilities are classified as held for
trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial
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instruments entered into by the Company that are not desighated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined
by Ind AS 109, Separated embedded derivalives are also classified as held for trading unless they are designated as effective
hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated as such at the
initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair
value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risk are recognized in QCY. These gains/ losses are not subsequently
transferred to P&L. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in
fair value of such liability are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at am ortized cost using the EIR
method. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through the EIR
amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an
existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in the
Statement of profit or loss.

Reclassification of Financial instruments
The Company determines classification of financial assets and liabilities on initial recoghition, After initial recognition,
no reclassifications are made for financial assets and financial liabilities.

Offsetting of Financial Instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the batance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

iy Foreign currencies

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (INR or %) which is also the functional and reporting currency of
the Company.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the functional currency, by applying the exchange rate between the functional
currency and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the
closing rate. Non-monetary items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using
the exchange rate at the date of the transactions,

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from
those al which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year in which they
arise,

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when
the fair value is determined. The gain or loss arising on transfation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated
in line with the recognition of gain or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose
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fair value gain or loss is recognized in other comprehensive income or profit or loss are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or profit or loss, respectively).

j}  Taxes
Current Income taxes

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compule the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at
the reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income

Current income tax relating to items recognized outside profit or loss is recognized outside profit or loss {either in other
comprehensive income or in equity). Current tax items are recognized in correlation to the underlying transaction either in
OCI or directly in equity. Management periodicaily evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations
in which applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred Tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date,

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

e  When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwili or an asset or liability in a transaction
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss.

o Inrespect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, when the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable that the
temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unhused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can
be utilised, except:

«  When the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither
the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

o Inrespect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences
will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can
be utilised :

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become
probable that future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered,

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is
realised, or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
reporting date

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other
comprehensive income or in equity), Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either
in OCI or directly in equity.
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Retirement and other employee benefits

Retirement benefit in the form of provident fund is a defined contribution scheme. The Company has no obligation, other
than the contribution payable to the provident fund. The Company recognizes contribution payable to the provident fund
scheme as an expense, when an employee renders the related service. If the contribution payable to the scheme for service
received before the balance sheet date exceeds the contribution already paid, the deficit payable to the scheme is recognized
as a liability after deducting the contribution already paid. If the contribution already paid exceeds the contribution due for
services received before the balance sheet date, then excess is recognized as an asset to the extent that the pre-payment
will lead to, for example, a reduction in future payment or a cash refund.

Retitement benefit in the form of gratuity is a defined benefit scheme. The costs of providing benefits under the scheme
are determined on the basis of actuarial valuation at each year-end using the projected unit credit method. The actuarial
valuation is carried out for the plan using the projected unit credit method,

Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling, excluding amounts included in
net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return on plan assets (excluding amounts included in net interest on
the net defined benefit liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or credit to
retained earnings through OC] in the period in which they occur, Remeasurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in
subsequent periods.

Past service costs are recognised in profit or loss on the earlier of
¢ The date of the plan amendment or curtailment, and
s  The date that the Company recognizes related restructuring costs

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net defined benefit liability or asset. The Company

recognizes the following changes in the net defined benefit obligation as an expense in the statement of profit and loss:

e  Service costs comprising current service costs, past-service costs, gains and losses on curtailments and non-routine
settlements; and

e Netinterest expense or income

Accumulated leave, which is expected to be utilized within the next 12 months, is treated as short-term employee benefit.
The Company measures the expected cost of such absences as the additional amount that it expects to pay as a result of
the unused entitlement that has accumulated at the reporting date,

The Company treats accumulated leave expected to be carried forward beyond twelve months, as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensated absences are provided for based on the actuarial valuation
using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. The Company presents the leave as a current liability in the balance
sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date.
Where Company has the unconditional legal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months,
the same is presented as non-current Hability.

) Earnings per share

'

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders
(after deducting attributable taxes) by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Parily
paid equity shares are treated as a fraction of an equity share to the extent that they are entitled to participate in dividends
relative to a fully paid equity share during the reporting period. The weighted average number of equity shares outstanding
during the period is adjusted for events such as bonus issue, bonus element in a rights issue, share split and reverse share
split (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding change
in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for the effects of all
dilutive potential equity shares,
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m)} Provisions

General

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it
is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be
reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain, The
expense relating to any provision is presented in the Statement of profit or loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost,

Provisions are reviewed at the end of each reporting period and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no
longer probable that an outflow of resoutces would be required to settle the obligation, the provision is reversed.

Decommissioning liability

The Company records a provision for decommissioning costs of its solar power plants. Decommissioning costs are
provided at the present value of expected costs to settle the obligation using estimated cash flows and are recognised as
part of the cost of the particular asset. The cash flows are discounted at a current pre-tax rate that refiects the risks specific
to the decommissioning liability. The unwinding of the discount is expensed as incurred and recognised in the statement
of profit and loss as a finance cost. The estimated future costs of decommissioning are reviewed annually and adjusted as
appropriate. Changes in the estimated future costs or in the discount rate applied are added to or deducted from the cost of
the asset.

n) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such
indication exists, or when annual impairment assessment for an asset is required, the Company makes an estimate of the
asset’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s fair value
less costs of disposal and its value in use and is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, Where the cartying amount of an asset
or cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its
recoverable amount,

Impairment losses are recognised in the statement of profit & loss, except for assets that are previously revalued where
the revaluation was taken to other comprehensive income. In this case, the impairment is also recognised in other
comprehensive income up to the amount of any previous revaluation.

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the assel’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. If that is the case, the carrying amount of
the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. That increase cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised previously. Such reversal is recognised in
statement of comprehensive income unless the asset is measured at revalued amount, in which case the reversal is treated
as a revaluation increase,

o) Contingent Assets/liabilities

Contingent assets are not recognized. However, when realization of income is virtually ceriain, then the related asset is no
fonger a contingent asset, and is recognized as an asset.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the
occurrence of non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present
obligation that is not recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation. A contingent liability also arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized
because it cannot be measured reliably. The Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence
in the financial statements.
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p) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents in the Balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. For the purpose of the
consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

q) Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments such as derivates at Fair value at each balance sheet date. Fair value is the
price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to {ransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell
the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

. In the principal market for the asset or lability

° In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset
in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the use of unobservable
inputs,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorized within the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
as a whole;

Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets ot liabilities

Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly
or indirectly observable

Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable.

At each reporting date, the management of the Company analysis the movements in the values of the assets and liabilities
which are required to be measured or reassessed as per the accounting policies of the Company.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the
nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above. This
note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are given in the reievant notes.

r) Amendment to Accounting Standards (Ind AS) issued but not yet effective.

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA™) notifies new standard or amendments to the existing standards under Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as issued from time to time. As at 31st March, 2024 MCA has not notified any new
standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the Company.
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3. (i) Property, plant and equipment

Gross block (at Cost)
Opening ns at April 01,2022
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

At March 31,2023
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

Al March 31, 2024

BDepreciation/ Amortisation
Opening as at April 01, 2022
Charge for the year

Disposals

At Marceh 31, 2023

Charge for the year

Disposals

At March 31, 2024

Net Carrying value

At March 31, 2023
At March 31,2024

{ii) Blpht-of-usc assets®

Particulars

Opening as at April 01, 2022

Additions during {he year

Depreciation for the year

Batance as af March 31, 2023

Depreciation for the year

Balance as at March 31, 2024

* Right-of-use assets: Refer note 39 for disclosures.

4, (i) Intangible nssets

Gross block

Opening as at April 01, 2022
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

At March 31, 2023
Additions during the year
Disposals during the year

At March 31, 2024

Depreciation/ Amortisation
Opening as at April 01,2022
Charge for the year

Disposals

At March 31, 2023

Charge for the year

Disposals

At March 31, 2024

Net Carrying value
At March 31, 2024
At March 31, 2023

Plant and Computers (including Furoiture & fixture Office Vehicles Tatal
equipment servers) equipment
48,995.07 59.87 0.41 62,80 62.24 49,180.39
- 396 0.52 0.51 - 499
48,995.07 6383 0.93 63.31 62.24 49,185.38
- - - 13.54 - 15.54
26,80 0.65 - 2,16 - 29.61
45,968.27 63.18 0.93 76,64 62.24 49,171.31
2,668.60 31,95 0.04 10,50 9.20 2,720.29
1,959.79 15,93 0.06 12.57 7.39 1,995.74
4,628.39 47.88 0.10 23.07 16.59 4,716.03
1,965.16 563 0.09 14.49 7.41 1,992.78
343 0.62 - 0.37 - 4.42
6,550.12 51.89 6.19 37.19 24,00 6,704.39
44,366.68 15,95 0.83 40.24 45,65 44,469.35
42,378,15 10.29 0.74 39.50 38,24 42,466.92
Total
3,866,70
9.07
(163.25)
3,712.52
(164.56)
3,547.96
Software Total
0,75 0.75
0.75 0.75
0.21 .21
0.21 0.21
0.54 0.54




JUNIPER GREEN S1GMA PRIVATE LIMITED
CIN-U40300DL2019PTCI46806

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31,2024
(Alt amounts are stated in 7 lakhs, untess otherwise stated}

As at As at

icul
Partlculars March 31,2024 Mareh 31, 2023

5 Investment
Neu-current investments
Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares (OCRPSs)
In Fellow subsldiary (Preference Shares of T 10 each)
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited 60,000,000 Preference Shares (March 31, 2023: NihJ* 6,000.00 -
Total 6,000.00 -

*During the current year, the Company has subscribed o Optionally conventible redeemable preference shares (“OCRPS') of Rs 16 cach having & fixed cumulative dividend @ 0.01% p.a.
Each OCRPS will be convertible into one equity share in the ratio of {21 within o period of 20 years from the date of alloiment and are redeemable at par as per the terms of their issue.

6 Other non current financial assets

Fixed deposits (with retaining maturity for imore thar 12 months) 929,77 -

Fixed deposits under lien with Bank(refer note below} 1,£39.00 1,139.00
Interest accrued on fixed deposits 21,57 9.13
Total 2,090.34 1,148.73

Note: Under lien with bank for the purpose of DSRA.

7 Non current tax nssels {nef)
Advance income-tax [nel of provision for tax T Nil) 48.17 47,78
Total 48.17 47.78

8 Other non-current assets (Unsecuved, considered good unless etherwise staled)
Prepaid expenses 1.07 144
Total 1.07 1.44

9 Security deposit - current financial asset
Security deposit 18.14 17.40
Total 18.14 17.40

it Investments
Quoted mutual funds (measured at falr value {hrough Profit and Loss)

HDFC Overnight Mutual Fund-Direct Plan - Growth Option 1,524.52 918,39
142,905,712 units (March 31, 2023: 27,592,152 unils)}
Total 1,524.52 9i8.39

Aggregale book value and market value of unquoted investments - -
Aggregate market value of quoted invesiments 1,524.52 918.39
Aggregate amount of impairment in value of investinents - -

11 Trade receivables
Trade receivables considered good - Secured - B
Trade receivables considered good - Unsecured 1,015.81 713.26
Total 1,015.81 413.26

Trade receivables are non interest bearing and are gencrally on terms of O to 30 days,
Trade receivables ageing schedule

As at 31 March 2024

Qutstanding for following perlods from due date of payment
Particulars Less than 6 6 monihs — 1 More than

Unbilled Not due 1-2 years 2-3 years Totat

montiis year 3 yenrs
Unillsputed trade receivables 803.79 - 212.02 - B - - 1,015.81
—Considered good* - - - . - - - -
—Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -
Totn! tragde receivables 803.7% - 212,02 - - - - 1,015.81
Less: Loss allowances - - . - - - - -
Total 803.79 - 212.02 u - - - 1.015.81
*There are no disputed trade receivables. Hence, the same has not been disclosed in the ageing schedule.
Asg at 31 March 2023

Outsipnding for following periods from due date of payment

Particulars Unbilted Not Due Less than 6 6 months — 1 12 years 23 years More than Total

months year 3 years
Undisputed trade recelvables 713.26 - - - - - - 713.26
—Considered good* - - u - - - - -
—Which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - - -
Total irnde receivables 713.26 - - - - - - 713.26
Less: Loss allowances - - - - - - - -
Total 713.26 - - - - - - 713.26

*There arc no disputed trade receivables. Hence, the seme has not been disclosed in the ageing schedule.
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As at As at

feul
Particulars March 31,2024 Marel 31, 2023

£2 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash in hand 0.14 0.14
Balances with banks:

- On current accounts 111.07 4531
- Fixed deposits with eriginal maturity of ess than 3 months - 745.04
Tolal 111,21 760.49

13 Other bank balances

- Fixed deposits with remaining maturity for less than 12 months 117,15 1,029.00
- Fixed deposits with remaining maturity for less than 12 months* 2,967,71 4,804.67
Total 3,084.86 5,833.67

*Deposits aperegating are under lien as per terms of contractual arrangement, but are readily accessible by the Company, on demand,

Nel deb1 reconciliation
This section sets out analysis of net debt and the movement in net debt for each of the period presented
Net debi as on 31 March 2024

Fair value
adjustment {Other
than Cash Flow) /

Opening #s Commitment /

Farticulars at March 31, Cash Flows  Adjustment March 31,2024

2023 daring the year Others
Non current - borrowings (including current maturities) 42,303,30 {1,606.19) - 9.04 40,706.15
Lease liabilities 3,288 75 {223.53) - 294,16 3,350.38
Taotal (A) 45,592.05 {1,829.71) - 303,20 44,065,53
Less:
Cash and cosh equivalents (760.49) 049.28 - - (111,21)
Investment in mutual fund (318.39) (594,23} - (11,90 (1,524.52)
Net cash & cash equivalent (B) (1,678,88) 55.08 - (11.90) (1,635.7))
Net Debt (A-B) 43,913.17 (1,114.67) “ 191,30 42,429.80
Net debt as on 31 March 2023
Opening as Commitment / "d.“:?::e;:“('gmer
Particulars at March 31, Cash Flows  Adjustment . March 31,2023
2022 during the year than Cash Flow) /
Others
Non current - borrowings (including current maturities) 43,921.88 (1,627.62) - 9.04 42,303.30
Lease liabilities 3,161.28 (165.93) 9.07 284,33 3,288.75
Total (A) 47,083.16  {1,793.55) 9.07 203,37 45,502,058
Less:
Cash and cash eguivalents {675.15) (85.34) - - (760.49)
Investiment in mutual fund {150.22) {760.91) - (7.26) (¢18.3%)
Net cash & cash equivalent (B) {825.37) (846.25) - {7.26) (1,678.88)
Net Debt {A- B) 46,257.79 (2,639.80) 9.07 286,11 43,913.17
14 Other current financial assets
{Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated)
Interest accrued on bank deposits 19.67 50,50
Interest accrued on security deposils 070 1,03
Receivable from related parties (vefer note 36) 8.79 9,60
Tutal 29.16 61.13
15 Other current assets
(Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise siated)
Prepaid expensss 64.37 8447
Other advances (including advance to employees) 6.90 6.12
Balance with government authority 1,19 0.40

Total 7246 90.9%
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16. Equily share capital

Particulars As at Asal
ar
i March31,2024  March 31,2023

Authorised share capital:

Equily share capital

73,000,000 {Macch 31, 2023: 73,000,000) equity shares of Rs.10/- each 7,300.00 7,300.00
7,300.00 7.300.00

Issued, subscxibed and fully paid-up share capital:

72,050,000 (March 31, 2023: 72,050,000} equity shares of Rs. [0/- each 7,205.00 7.205.00
7.205.00 7.205.00

A. Reconclliation of number of equity shaves

Issued, subscribed and Tully paid-up sharve capital No, of shares Amount

At Aprit 01, 2022 7,20,50,000 7,205,860

Issued durinyg (he year - -

Al Mareh 31,2023 7.20,50,000 1,205,00

Issued during the year - -

At March 31, 2024 7.20.50.000 7.285.00

B. Terms/Rights atiached to shares
Terms/Riphts attached to equity shares

The Company has only one class of equily shares having a par value of Rs.10/- per shere. Each holder of equity shares is entitled to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the
Cotnpany, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion fo

the number of equity shares held by the sharcholders.

C. Shares held by helding company

Out of equity shares issued by the Company, shares leld by its holding company are as below:

Particul As at As at
acticulars March 31,2024 March 31,2023
72,050,000 (March 31, 2023: 72,050,000) equity shares of Rs, {0/~ cach leld by Juniper Green Encrgy Private Limited,
the helding company and its nominee 7,205.00 7,205.00
D. Details of sharehiolders holdings more than 5% shares
As at As at
'ch 31, 202, Maret 23

Name of the shareholder March 31,2024 aveh 31, 20

Number of shaves  Percentage of  Number of shares  Percentage of

held Holding held Holding

Equity shares of Rs 10 each fully paid
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited, the holding company and iis nominee 7.20,50,000 £00.00% 7.20,50,000 100.00%

As per records of the Company, including its register of sharcholders/members and other deciaration received from shareholders regarding beneficial interest, the above shareholding

represent both legal and beneficial ownership of shares,

E. Detalls of equity shares held by promoters
As at March 31, 2024

Promoter Name Number of shares at Change in Nunmiber of shares % of tofal Shares % change in
the heginning of the shareholding attheend of the  of the Company  shareholding
year during the year year during the year
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited and its nominee 720,506,000 - 7,20,50,000 100.00% -
Ax at Mavch 31,2023
Promoter Name Number of shares at Change in Number of shares % of total Shares % change in
the heginning of the shavehotding at the end of the  of the Company  shareholding
year during the year yeay during the year
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited and its nominee 7,20,50,000 . 7,20,50,000 100.00%

F. The Company has not issued any shares pursuani to a contract without payment being veceived in cash in the current year and preceeding five yeaes. The Company has not issued
any bonus shares nor has there been any buy back in current year and preceeding five years.

7. Other Equity

(a)Retained earnings™

Opening

Add : Net profit / (loss) for the year

Add : Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax

Net surplus / (deficit) In statement of profif snd loss

(b) Equity component as per kInd AS 109
Opening

Addition during the year

Closing

Total other equity (ath)

Relained earnings* : Retained enmings refer 1othe tli et profit/

Yretained by the Company for its business,

As at As at

March 31,2024 March 31,2023
2,023.73 477.68
2,618.51 1,547.67
(1.00) (1.62)

4,641.24 2,023.73

871,64 B71.64

871,64 871.64

5,512.88 2,895.37
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Notes to financial statements for (he year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

As at As at
Particalars March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
13 Borrowings
Secured
Term loan from financial institutions* 34,916,15 36,513.30
Unsecured
Liability component as per Ind AS 109** (refer note 36) 5,790.00 5,790.00
Amount disclosed under the head current borrowings (refer note 21} (1,721.19) {1,606.18)
Total 38,984.96 40,697.12
Note*

19

Represents ferm loan is from Power Finance Corporation (“PFC”) in INR specifically for the purpose of setting up 120 MW solar power project in Gufarat which carries interest at 8.10%
and next reset on 15 March 2025, The term loan is repayable over a tenure of 17 years in manthly inslallments statting from 15 January 2022 ard ending on 15 December 2038. The term
toan is secured by:

(i) Exclusive First Charge by way of Morigage over:

- all the immovable properties, ineluding any leasehold rights, if any, both present and future;

. all tangible movable assets, including moveable plant and machinery, machinery spares, equipment, fools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets
wherever situated, both present and fufure;

- all intangsble assets including goodwill, intellectual property rights, undertaking and uncalled capital, both present and future;

- all the Current Assets, including but not limiled to, book debts, operating cash flows, Receivables, commissions, revenwes of whatsoever nature and whenever arising, both present and
future;

- all accounts inctuding, the Trust and Retention Account and the Sub-Account(s), the DSRA, MMRA or any account created for any reserve lo be created and maintained (or any accouni in
substitution thereof), or any of (he Project Documents or other accounts of the Borrower and all funds from time to time deposited therein, the receivables and all Permitled Investments or
other securities representing all amounts credited to the Trust and Retention Account, any Jetter of credit and other reserves of the Borrower present and fulure wherever mainfained;

(i) assignment {lo the extent pennitted under the Applicable Laws) of:

- all the rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims and demands whatsoever in the Project Documents/ Contracis (including bul not limited to Power Purchase Agreement(s)/ memorandum of
understanding, package/ construction contracts, O&M related agreements, service contracts, and all other Contracis);

- all the rights, titles, interests, benefits, claims and demands in, fo and under all the Clearances relating to the Project;

- all the rights, titles, interests, licenses, benefits, claims and demands in the Project Documents/ Contracts {including but not limited to package/consiruction contracts, operation and
maintenance contracts, land lease agreements, service contracts, other Contracts, memorandum of understanding, guarantees under the Contracts, PPA(s), any letter of credit or such other
security to be provided by the procurers of pawer under the terms of PPA(s)), letter of credits, guarantee, liguidated damages, performance bond and corporate guarantee provided by any
party under any of the Project Documents, excluding any bank guarantees provided 1o the Borrower by any party under any of the Contracls; and

(iii) pledge of 51% (fifty-one percent) of Equity Shares and Quasi Equity, both present and future, held by the Pledgor,

{iv} an irrevocable and unconditional Corporate Guarantee from the holding company for the purpose of repayment/payment of Secured Obligations and the same shall be released after
compliance of cerlain conditions.

#% Represenls unsecured loan from the Holding Company which is repayable on or before March 31, 2039. The interest equivalent to (he interest rate of term loan is payable from Aprit 01,
2022 or Project Commerical Operation Date ('CODY) or till repayment of first installmen of term loan, whichever is later, In accordance with IND AS 109, ihis unsecured loan has been
separated into Tiability and equily components . Equily component has been classified under Other Byquity (refer note {7) and liability component under non-current borrowings. Interes! on
liability component is recognised using the effective interest method.

Provisions

Non-current

Provision for gratuity (refer note 38) 11,76 17.41
Total 1L.76 17.11
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

20. Deferred tax liahility / (asset) (nef)

{a) Components of deferved tax liability / (asset) (net)

Deferred tax liability:

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment

DTL on equity component as per Ind AS 1069

Right to use assels

EIR adjustment of betrowings

Fair vale of investment and financial instruments at amortised cost
Gross deferred tax liability (A)

Deferred tax assel:

Provision for employee benefils
Lease liability

Prepayment of land lease
Unabsorbed depreciation*
Gross deferred tax asset (B)

Net deferred tax liability / (asscts) (A-B)

{b) Reconciliation of deferred tax assets / (liability) :

Cpening balance

Tax (income)/expense during the year recognised in statement profit and loss

Tax (income)expense during the year recognised in other comprehensive income

Closing balance as at 31 March 2024

(c) Movemen in deferred tax liability / {assets)

Movement in deferred liability / (assets) for current year ended March 31, 2024

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
841565 7415.07
293.16 293.16

892.95 934.37

33,55 35.83

3.00 1.83

9,638,31 8,680.26

7.44 5.10

795.18 770.04

22.45 22.48

6,523.02 6,482,606
7,348.09 7,280.28
2,290.22 1,399.98

As at As at

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
1,399.98 875.05

890.58 52548
(0.34) {0.55)

2,290,22 1,399.98

(T in takhs)

April 1, 2023

Recognised in

Recognised in

March 31, 2024

\ other profit and loss
Particulars .
camprehensive
income

Liability
Property, plant and equipment- depreciation 7,415.07 - 1,000.58 8,415.65
Right to use assets 934.37 - {41.42) 892.95
Equity component as per Ind AS 109 293.16 - - 293.16
EIR Adjustment of borrowings 35.83 (2.28) 33.55
Fair vale of investment and financial instruments at amortised cost 1.83 117 3.00

§,680,26 - 958.05 9,638.31
Assets
Provision for employee benefits 510 0.34 2,00 7.44
Lense Liability 770.04 - 25.14 795.18
Prepayment of land lease 2248 - (0.03) 22.45
Unabsorbed deprecialion* 6,482,66 - 40.36 6,523,02

7,280.28 0.34 67.47 7,348.09
Net Deferred tax liability / (assets) 1,399.98 (0.34) 890.58 2,290,22




JUNIPER GREEN SIGMA PRIVATE LIMITED
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Notes {o financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024

{All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated}

Movement in deferred liability / {assets) for previous year ended March 31, 2023

(% in lakhs)

April 1, 2022

Recogaised in

Recognised in

March 31, 2023

Particulars other . profii and loss
comprehensive
income

Liability
Property, plant and equipment- depreciation 5410.09 - 2,004.98 7.415.07
Right to use assels 973.17 - {38.80) 934,37
Equity component as per Ind AS 109 293.16 - - 293,16
EIR adjustment of borrowings 38.10 - (2.27) 35.83
Fair vale of investment and financial instruments at amortised cost 0,12 - 1.71 1.83

6,714.64 - 1,965.62 8,680.26
Assels
Provision for employec benefits 2.01 0.55 2.54 5.10
Lease liability 737.92 32,12 770.04
Prepayment of land lease 26,59 4.10) 2248
Unabsatbed deprecialion™ 5,073.07 - 1,409,59 6,482.66

5,839.59 0.55 1,440.14 7,280,28
Net deferred tax liability / {nssets) 875.05 (0.55) 525.48 1,399.98

*The Company has unabsorbed depreciation of INR 25,917.92 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 25,757.53 Lakhs), The unabsotbed depreciation will be
available for offsetting against future taxable profits of the Company, The Company has recognised deferred tax assets (on unabsorbed depreciation) of

INR 6,523.02 Lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 6,482.66 Lakhs) utilisation of which is dependent on future profits, The future taxable profits are based on
projections made by management considering the long term power purchase agreement with power procurer.
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Notes to finnnclal statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in T Jakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Partieut As at As at
nrs
artiet March 31,2024  March 31, 2023
21 Borrowings
Secured
Current maturites of long lerm borrowings 1,721,19 1,606.18
Total 1,721.19 1,606.18
22 Trade payables

23

24

25

- Total outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises (refer note 33) 30.84 18,02
- Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro and small enterprises (refer note 36 for dues of related party) 118.51 99.96
Total 149,38 117,98

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally settled 0-90 days terms,

Trade payables ageing schedule

Ax nt 31 March 2024

Qutsianding for Tellowing periods from due date of payment

Particulars Less than |

Unbllled year 12 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Totnl
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises - 25.30 5.33 - 0.21 30.84
Total outstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 21,49 35.79 0.01 - 1.22 118,51
Total 81.4% 61,09 534 - 1.43 149.35

*There are no disputed trade receivables. Hence, the same has not been disclosed in the ageing schedule.

As at 31 March 2023
Qutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Particul
avtiewiars Unbitled bes;:::.n 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enlerprises - 18.02 - - . 18,02
Total culstanding dues of ereditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 56,30 42.23 1.13 0.30 - 99.96
Total 56,04 60,25 1.13 0340 - 117.98

*There are no disputed trade receivables, Hence, the same has not been disclosed in the ageing schedule.

Other current financial liabilities
Payable for purchase of property, plant and equipment {includes INR 5.63 lakhs (March 31,

2023: INR 11.57 Lakhs) payables (o micro and small enterprises, refer note 35) 32.23 3943
Retention meney payable (includes INR 56.33 lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 126.20 Lakhs}

) : 95,58 21261
payables fo micro and small enterprises, refer note 35)
Interes{ accrued but net due on loan from hotding company 422.09 104,08
Interest accrued but not due on term loan 132.23 138.29
Payable to related parties (refer note 36} 17.41 8.05
Employee related liabilities 5.29 11.12
Taotal 704.83 513,58
Other current liabilities
Statutory dues 62,29 21.23
Total 62,29 21.23
Provisions
Current
Provision {or compensaled absences 9.24 i2.83
Provision for grataity (refer note 38} 0.06 0.02

Total 230 12.85
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year ended

For the year ended

March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
26 Revenue from operations
Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of power 9,119.06 7,987.26
Less: Rebate and reactive charges (108.44) {101.26)
Other operating income
Sate of voluntary emission reductions (VERSs) 638.50 558.48
Total 9,649.12 8,444.48
27 Other income
Interest income on
Fixed deposits 388.57 399.22
Income tax refund 1.91 3.8
Others 0.65 0.24
Profit on sale of muiual fund (net) 83.54 2334
Net gain on investment in Mutual Fund measured at fair value through profit and loss 11.90 7.26
Insurance claim received - 7.09
Miscellaneous income 19.85 3.49
Total 506.42 443,82
28 Employee benefit expenses
Salaries, wages and bonus 124.66 215,06
Contribution to provident and other funds 8.55 14.46
Gratuity expenses 4.82 5.80
Leave encashment 3.95 4.89
Staff welfare expenses 17.93 12.48
Total 159,91 252.69
29 Finance cost
Interest on loan from financial institution 2,920.93 3,039.80
Interest expenses on lease liabilities 294.16 284.33
Interest on loan from holding company 468.99 468.99
Other borrowing eost (hedging cost, bank guarantee and other charges) 0.78 52.01
Total 3,684.86 3,845,132
30 Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation on property plant and equipment (Refer note 3) 1,992.77 1,995.73
Amortisation of intangible assets (refer note 4) 0.21 -
Depreciation on right to use assets (Refer note 3) 164.56 163.25
Total 2.157.54 2,158.98
31 Other cxpenses
Operational & maintenance expenses 238.18 162.89
Insurance expense 110.47 127.15
Security expenses 97.60 77.89
Rent expenses 5.41 40,84
Legal and professional expenses 42,55 46.00
Travelling and conveyance 3195 27.93
CSR expenditure (Note-A) 29.08 14.83
VER Issuance expenses 33.41 14,43
Payment to auditors (Note-B} 10.23 13.93
Rates & taxes 21.93 7.91
Electricity expenses - 6.88
Communication expenses 2.83 4.1t
Loss on sale of property, ptant and equipment 7.04 -
Foreign exchange Loss (net) - 1.59
Business support services 7.56 -
Miscellanecous expenses 5,90 11.97
Total 644.14 558.35
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Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
{All amounts are stated in T lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended

For the year ended

Particular
HHCArS March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

Note- A
Details of CSR expenditure
a) Gross amount required to be spent by the Company for the year 29.06 14,83
b) Amount spent in cash during the year on

i) Construction/acquisition of any asset - -

i) On purposes other than (i} above 29.08 20.81

¢} Details related to unspent obligations;
i} Construction/acquisition of any asset
i} On purposes other than (i) above

Total - -
Amount spent under section 135(5)
Amount required Amount spent
Opening Balance to be spent during . p Closing Balance
during the year
the year
- 29.06 29.08 (0.02)
Note-B
Payment to auditors comprises fee (inclusive of GST)
Audif fee 443 6.68
In other capacity
Other services {(group reporting, certification and others) 531 6.38
Reimbursement of expenses 0.49 0.87
Total 10.23 13.93
32 Income tax expenses
(a) Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit or loss comprises:
Current tax - -
Deferred tax charge relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences 890.58 52548
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 890,58 525,48
(b) Statement of Other Comprehensive Income
Net loss / {gain) on remeasurement of defined benefit plans {0.34) (0.55)
Total (0.34) (0.55)
(¢) Reconciliation of tax expenses and the accounting profit multiplied by India's domestic tax rate :
Accounting profit before income tax 3,509.09 2,073.15
Applicable statutory income tax rate 25.17% 25.17%
Tax as per income tax act 883.17 521.77
Tax as per companies act [refer above note 32(a)] 890,58 52548
Adjustments for ;
Adjustment of tax relating to earlier years (0.01) 0.59
Expenses not allowed under income {ax act and others (7.40) (4.300
Total Tax 8R3.17 521.77

The tax rate used for the year 2023-24 and 2022-23 is the Corporate tax rate of 25.17% payable by corporate enfities in India on taxable profits

under the Income Tax Act 1961,
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33.

34,

Earnings Per Share (EPS):
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net profit or loss for the year attributable to equity sharcholders by
the weighted average number of equity shares ouistanding during the year.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the year altributable to equity sharcholders
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year are adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential

equity shares, il any.

The following data reflects the inputs to calculation of basies and diluted EPS:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Net profit as per statement of profit and loss for ealculation of basic

EPS and dilutive EPS 261851 1,547.67
gfslghted average number of equity shares for calculating basic/diluted 7.20,50,000 7,20,50,000
Nominal value per share (%) 10.00 10.00
Basic & Diluted earnings per share (%) 3.63 2.15

Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material
adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Other disclosures relating to the Company’s exposure to risks and uncertainties includes:
+ Capital management {Refer note - 41)

+ Financial risk management objectives and policies (Refer note - 43)

+ Sensitivity analyses disclosures (Refer note - 43)

A, Judgments
In the process of applying the Company accounting policies, management has made the following judgments, which have
the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statements:

Determining the lease term of contracts with renewal and termination options — Company as a lessee:

The Company determines the lease term as the non-cancellable term of the lease, together with any periods covered by an
option to extend the lease if it is reasonably certain to be exercised, or any periods covered by an option to terminate the
lease, if it is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has several lease contracts that include extension and termination options. The Company applies judgement
in evaluating whether it is reasonably certain whether or not to exercise the option to renew or terminate the lease. That is,
it considers all relevant factors that create an economic incentive for it to exercise either the renewal or termination. After
the commenceinent date, the Company reassesses the lease term if there is a significant event or change in circumstances
that is within its control and affects its ability to exercise or not to exercise the option to renew or to terminate (e.g.,
construction of significant leasehold improvements or significant customization to the leased asset). Refer to Note 39 for
information on potential future rental payments relating to periods following the exercise date of extension and termination
options that are not included in the lease term,
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B. Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company, Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur.

a) Impairment of non-financial assets
The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal
factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

b) Taxes:
Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment
of the probability of the future taxable income against which the deferred tax assets can be utilized.

¢) Defined benefits plan (Gratuity)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the
future, These include the determination of the discount rate; future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the
complexity of the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed al each reporting date.

d) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet cannot be measured based on
quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model. The
inputs to these models are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of
judgment is required in establishing fair values.

Assumptions include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions
about these factors could affect the reported fair value of financial instruments.

e) Useful life of property, plant and equipment
The Company uses its technical expert along with historical and industry trends for detaining the economic life of an asset,
The useful life is reviewed by management periodically and revised, if appropriate. In case of revision, the unamortized
depreciable amount is charged over the remaining useful life of the asscts.

f) Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Company cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit in the lease, therefore, it uses its incremental borrowing
rate (IBR) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of interest that the Company would have to pay to borrow over
a similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects what the Company ‘would have to pay’, which requires
estimation when no observable rates are available. The Company estimates the IBR as rate at which the borrowing is
availed during the year.

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year, are described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the financial
statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
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to market changes ot circumstances arising beyond the control of the Company. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur,

35, The Micro and Small Enterprises have been identified by management from the available information, which has been
relied upon by the auditors, On the basis of the information and records available with the management, outstanding dues
to the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 are as follows,

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to any

. ; . 92.80 155.79
supptier as at the end of each accounting period
Principal amount due to micro and small enterprises 52.80 155.79
Interest due on above* Nil Nil
The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the MSMED
Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to the supplier beyond Nil Nil

the appointed day during each accounting period

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making
payment {which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the Nil Nil
period) but without adding the interest specified under the MSMED Act 2006,

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each

} . Nil Nil
accounting period
The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
succeeding years, until such date when the interest dues as above are actually Nil Nil
1

paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance as a deductible
expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006

* The amount of principal and interest is not due to Micro and Small Enterprises vendors as per the terms of the agreement
entered into with such vendors,
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36. Related Party Transactions

A) Nanie of related parties and related parties relationship
Relationship with the Company Names of Related Parties
Holding Company Juniper Green Energy Private Limited

Nisagra Renewable Energy Private Limited

Juniper Green Field Private Limited

Fellow subsidiaries (With whom Juniper Green Three Private Limited

transaction have taken place) Juniper Green Beam Private Limited

Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited

Juniper Green Beta Private Limited

Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited

Key management personnel Ankush Malik, Director

Devendra Singh, Director up to 29" April 2024

Robin Batra, Director w.e.f. 25" April 2024

Shubham Prashar, Company Secretary up to 31% July 2023
Rishika Kapoor, Company Secretary w.e.f, 2" January 2024

B) Statement of Transactions with Related Parties
Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Inferest expenses on loan
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 468.99 468.99

Investment in Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares
(OCRPSs)- Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each

Juniper Green Beam Private Limited 6,000.00 u
Reimbursement of expenses

Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited 2.28 -
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 11.00 -
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 4,12 -
Juniper Green Field Private Limited 0.98 9.60
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 8.22 5.42

Reimbursement of expenses (Business Support Services)

Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 7.56 -
Salary and other benefits

Nitika Garg - 0.36
Rishika Kapoor 0.45 -
Shubham Prashar 2.75 3.87

*All related party transactions are at arm’s length and in the normal course of business.
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C) Balances Qutstanding as at Year end

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Intercompany loan payable
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 5,790.00 5,790.00
Investment in Optionally convertible redeemable preference shares
(OCRPSs)- Preference Shares of ¥ 10 each
Juniper Green Beam Private Limited 6,000.00 -
Interest on intercompany loan payable
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 422.09 104.08
Receivable for expenses
Juniper Green Three Private Limited 0.17 -
Juniper Green Field Private Limited 8.62 9.60
Payable for expenses
Juniper Green Gamma One Private Limited 2.28 -
Juniper Green Cosmic Private Limited 11.01 -
Juniper Green Beta Private Limited 4.12 -
Juniper Green Three Private Limited - 8.05
Payable for expenses (Business support services)
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 6.92 -
Corporate guarantee taken
Juniper Green Energy Private Limited 38,985.00 38,985.00

37. Commitments and Contingency

(a) Lease
Refer note 39 for lease related commitments.

(b) Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net off advances) and not provided for

amounted to Nil as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: Nil).

(c) Contingent Liabilities not provided for as at March 31, 2024, are as follows: - Nil (March 31, 2023: Nil)

38. Employee Benefits

(a) Defined contribution plan

The Company makes contribution towards provident fund to a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for
qualifying employees. The Company's contribution to the Employee Provident Fund is deposited with the Regional

Provident Fund Commissioner.

During the year, company has recognized the following amounts charged to profit and loss:

Particulars March 31,2024 | Maych 31, 2023
Employers’ contribution to Employee’s provident Fund and other funds

8.55 14.46
charged to profit and loss

Defined benefit plan
Gratuity and other post-employment benefits

(b)

The Company has a defined benefit gratuity plan. Every employee who has completed five years or more of service
gets a gratuity on departure at 15 days salary (last drawn salary) for each completed year of service. These benefils
are unfunded, and Company provides for liability in its books of accounts based on the actuarial valyations.

ot BIg
&
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Risks associated with Gratuity plan provisions
The Company is exposed to number of risks in the defined benefit plans. Most significant risks pertaining to defined
benefit plans and management’s estimation of the impact of these risks are as follows:

Salary growth risk
The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan
participants. An increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan liability.

Interest vate risk
A decrease in interest rate in future years will increase the plan liability.

Life expectancy risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of mortality of
plan participants both during and at the end of the employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan liability.

Withdrawals Risk
Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent
valuations can impact the plan liability,

The following tables summaries the components of net benefit expense recognized in the statement of profit and loss
account and the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet.

Employee benefit expenses recognised in charged to profit and loss:

Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Current service cost 3.58 5.30
Interest cost on benefit liability 1.24 0.50
Actuarial (gain) / loss 1.27 2.17
Benefit expense recognized in statement of profit and loss 4.82 5.80
Benefit expense recognized in statement of other comprehensive 1.34 2.17
income
Balance Sheet:
Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of defined benefit obligation 11.82 17.13
Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:
Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Present value of obligation as at the beginning 17.13 6.63
Current service cost 3.58 5.30
Interest cost 1.23 0.50
Actuarial (gain) / loss 1.34 2,17
Others ) (11.46}) 2,53
Present Value of Obligation as at the end 11.82 17.13
Current liability (Short term) 0.06 0.02
Non-cutrent liability (Long term) 11.76 17.11




Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited

CIN- U40300DL2019PTC3468006

Notes to financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(AN amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity benefit obligation for the Company’s plans are shown

below:

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2623
Discount rate 7.22% 7.53%
Adttrition rate 5.00% 5.00%
Salary Escalation Rate 10.00% 10.00%

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority,
promotion and other relevant factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market.

These assumptions were developed by management with the assistance of independent actuarial appraisers. Discount
factors are determined close to each year-end by reference to government bonds of relevant economic markets and
that have terms to maturity approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Other assumptions are based on
management's historical experience.

As the Company does not have any plan assets, the movement of present value of defined benefit obligation and fair

value of plan assets has not been presented.

A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumptions are as follows:

Particulars March 31,2024 | March 31, 2023
1) Impact of the change in discount rate

Present value of obligation af the end of the year

a) Impact due to increase of 1% (1.69) (2.25)
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% 2.09 2.75
2) Impact of the change in salary

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

a) Impact due to increase of 1% 1.96 220
b} Impact due to decrease of 1% {1.63) (2.13)
3) Impact of the change in attrition rate

Present value of obligation at the end of the year

a) Impact due to increase of 1% (0.64) {0.80)
b) Impact due to decrease of 1% 0.74 0.91

The sensitivity analysis above have been determined based on a method that extrapolates the impact on defined benefit
obligation as a result of reasonable changes in key assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period.

Sensitivities due to mortality and withdrawal are not material and hence impact of change not calculated.

The following payments are expected contributions to the defined benefit plan in future years:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 0.06 0.02
Between 2 and 5 years 024 0.12
Between 6 and 10 years 0.28 1.56
Beyond 10 years 11,24 15.43

Weighted average duration of Gratuity Plan — 17.44 years as on March 31, 2024 (March 31, 2023: 18.12 years).

39. Leases:
The Company has lease contracts for leasehold properties used in its operations. These lease contracts generally have
lease term of 29.5 years.
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The Company has alse certain leases with lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low value asscts. The Company
applies the 'short term lease’ and 'leases of low value assets' recognition exemplions for these leases.

a) Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars Leasehold Land

Balance as at April 0, 2022 3,866.76
Addition during the year* 9.07
Depreciation for the year (163.23)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 ' 3,712.52
Addition during the year -
Depreciation for the year {164.56)
Balance as at March 31, 2024 3,547.96

* Adjustment on account of interest and inflation rate reassessment and revision on decommissioning obligation for
leasehold land,

b) Set out below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities recognised and the movements during the year:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Balance as at the beginning of the year 3,288.75 3,161.28
Addition during the year - 9.07
Accretion of interests / Others 294,16 284.33
Payments (223.53) (165.93)
Balance as at the end of the year 3,359.38 3,288.75
Current - -
Non-current 3,359.38 3,288.75

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in Note 43,
The effective interest rate for lease liabilities is 8.10% - 11.08% with maturity in year 2052,

As part of the identification and measurement of assets and liabilities for the commissioned 120 MW solar project in
Gujarat, the Company has recognised a provision amounting to INR 1,184,12 akhs (March 31, 2023: INR 1,095.16 lakhs)
for decommissioning obligations associated with projects constructed on leased land. In determining the fair value of the
provision, assumptions and estimates are made in relation to discount rates, inflation, the expected cost to dismantle and
remove the plant from the site and the expected timing of those costs. The provision as at March 31, 2024 was INR 1,184.12
lakhs (March 31, 2023: INR 1,095.16 lakhs), The Company estimates that the costs would be realised upon the expiration
of the lease and PPA’s term. The provision is based upon current cost estimates and has been determined on a discounted
basis by using incremental rate of long borrowing and rate of inflation basis on industry practice. The timing and amount
of future expenditures are reviewed annually, together with rate of inflation for escalation of cutrent cost estimates and the
interest rate used in discounting the cash flows.




Juniper Green Sigma Private Limited

CIN- U40300DL2019PTC346806

Notes to finaneial statements for the year ended March 31, 2024
(Al amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

¢} The following are the amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
164.56 163.25

Depreciation of right-of-use assets

Interest expense on Jease liabilities 294.16 28433
Expenses related to short term leases 29.04 58.58
Expenses relating to leases of Low value assets ) 1.28

487.76 507.44

Total amount recognised in the profit or loss for the year

Total Company's total cash outflow for leases (including for short term and leases of low value assets) for the year ended
March 31, 2024 is INR 252.57 lakhs (March 31, 2023: 225.79 lakhs).

40. The Company is engaged in business of sale of electricity. Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM) reviews the financial

41.

information of the Company as a whole for decision-making and accordingly the company has a single reportable segment.
The sale of power has been billed to a single customer. Further, the operations of the Company are limited within one
geographical segment. Hence, no further disclosure is required to be made.

Capital management

For the purpose of capital management, capital includes issued equity capital, and all other equity reserves attributable to
the equity holders of the parent. The primary objective of the Company capital management is lo maximize the shareholder
value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the
requirements of the financial covenants, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. The Company monitors capital using a gearing
ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company includes within net debt, loans and borrowings,
trade and other payables, less cash and cash equivalents.

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Borrowings 40,706.15 42.303,30
Add: Trade payables 149.35 117.98
Add; Other current financial liabilities 704.83 513,58
Less: Cash and cash equivalents 111.21 760.49
Net debts (A) 41,449.12 42,174.37
Shareholders’ Kunds (B} 12,717.88 10,100.37
Capital and net debt (C=A+B) 54,167.00 52,274.74
Gearing ratio {%) {(D=A/C) 76.52% 80.68%

In order to achieve this overall objective, the capital management of the Company, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that they meet financial covenants attached to interest -bearing loans and borrowings that define the capital structure
requirements,
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42. Fair value and Fair Value hierarchy

a. Fair value
The following table shows the comparison by class of the carrying amounts and fair value of Company’s financial assets,
other than those with carrying amount that are reasonable approximations of fair values:

Carrying Fair value Carrying Fair value
Particulars Value Value

March 31, March 31, March 31, March 31,

2024 2024 2023 2023

IFinancial assets
Financial assets measured at amortised cost
Trade receivables 1,015.81 1,015.81 713.26 713.26
Cash & cash equivalent 111.21 111.21 760.49 760.49
Other bank balances 3,084.86 3,084.86 5,833.67 5,833.67
Security deposits 18.14 18.14 17.40 17.40
Other non current financial assets 2,090,34 2,090.34 1,148.73 1,148.73
Financial assets measured at fair value through
profit and loss
Investment in mutual fund - Quoted 1,524.52 1,524.52 918.39 918.39
Financial linbilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
Trade payable 149.35 149.35 117.98 117.98
Other current financial liabilities 704.83 704.83 513.58 513.58
Lease liabilities 3,359.38 3,359.38 3,288.75 3,288.75
Borrowings 40,706,15 40,706.15 42,303.30 42,303.30

The management assessed that cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, other current financial assets, trade
payables, and other current financial liabilities, approximate their carrying amounts largely due to the short-term maturities
of these instruments,

The fair value of financials assets and liabilities is included at the amount at which the instruments could be exchange in
a cutrent transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sate. The following method and
assumptions were used to estimate the fair value:

Quoted investment in mutual fund - The fair values of the mutual funds are derived from quoted market prices in active
markets.
Other-The fair value of remaining financial instruments is determined by using discounted cash flow model.

b. Fair Value hierarchy

The judgement and estimates made in determining the fair value of the financial instruments that are (a) recognized at fair
value and (b) measured at amortized cost and for which fair value are disclosed in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified its financial
instruments into the three levels prescribed under accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows under the
table,

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statement are categorized with in the
fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on lowest level inpui that is significant to the fair value measurement as
a whole:

Level 1 Quoted {unadjusted) market price in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable
Level 3 Valuation technique for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable
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Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets / liabilities as on March 31, 2024

Date of }3:;:(::;:1 Significant Significant
Particulars . Total . observable unobservable
Valuation active inputs inputs
markets
(Level 1} (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed
Other non current financial assets | March 31, 2024 2,090.34 - 2,090.34 -
Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit and loss
Investment in mutual fund —1 o2y o004 | 1,524.52 1,524.52
quoted
Financial liabilities
Liabilities for which fair values
are disclosed
Borrowings March 31, 2024 | 40,706.15 - 40,706.15 -

Quantitative disclosures fair value measurement hierarchy for assets and liability as on March 31, 2023

Q.}mte.d Significant Significant
Particulars Date (.)f Total pr u:t'es n observable unobservable
Valuation active . .
markets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Financial assets
Assets for which fair values are
disclosed
Other non current financial assets | March 31, 2023 1,148.73 - 1,148,73 -
Financial assets measured at fair
value through profit and loss
Investment in mutual fund - March 31,2023 918.39 91839 i )
quoted
Financial liabilities
Liabilities for which fair values
are disclosed
Borrowings March 31, 2023 | 42,303.30 - 42.303.30 -

43, Financial risk management objective and policies

The Company principal financial liabilities comprise loans and borrowings, trade and other payables. The main purpose
of these financial tiabilities is to support the Company operations. The Company principal financial assets comprise, cash
and bank balance, other receivables that derive directly from its operations.
The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s senior management oversees the
management of these risks. The Company’s senior management is supported by a financial risk committee that advises on
financial risks and the appropriate financial risk governance framework for the Company. The financial risk committee
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provides assurance to the Company’s senior management that the Company’s financial risk activities are governed by
appropriate policies and procedures and that financial risks are identified, measured and managed in accordance with the
Company's policies and risk objectives. It is the Company’s policy that no trading in derivatives for speculative purposes
may be undertaken. The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies for managing each of these risks, which arc
summarized below,

(i} Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or customer contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credil risk from their operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and other financial instruments.

The Company assesses and manages credit risk of financial assets based on following categories arrived on the basis of
assumptions, inputs and factors specific to the class of financial assets. Low credit risk - Investments, loans, trade
receivables and other financial assets, Moderate credit risk / High credit risk - Loans and other financial assets, None of
the Company’s cash equivalents, including time deposits with banks, are past due or impaired. Provision for expected
credit loss is based on 12 month expected credit loss/life-time expected credit loss.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances is limited as the Company generally invests in deposits
with financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned by credit rating agencies. Investments primarily include
investment in fixed deposits,

The maximum exposure to credit risks is represented by the total carrying amount of these financial assets in the Balance
Sheet

Particulars March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023

- Security deposits 18.14 17.40
- Investments 1,524.52 918.39
- Other current financial assets 29.16 61.13
- Trade receivables 1,015.81 713.26

The Company uses expected credit loss model to assess the impairment loss or gain. The Company uses a provision matrix
to compute the expected credit loss allowance for trade receivables,

(ii) Liquidity risk

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and banking facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities for the Company.
The Company has established an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for it’s short-term, medium term and
long-term funding requirement.
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Exposure to liquidity risk

(All amounts are stated in ¥ lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

The following are the remaining contractual maturities of financial liabilities at the reporting date. The contractual cash
flow amounts are gross and undiscounted, and includes interest accrued but not due on borrowings.

Financial liabilities:

Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2024 Carrying On Less than Between More than
amount one and Total
Demand one year five years
five years
Borrowings* 40,706.15 - 4,497.06 17,548.97 36,250.41 58,296.44
Lease liability 3,359.38 - 393.73 814.70 11,495.80 12.704,23
Trade payables 149.35 - 149.35 - - 149.35
Othor current financial 704.83 . 704,83 . : 704.83
lighilities
Total 44,919.71 - 5,744.97 18,363.67 47,746.21 71,854.85
* This includes Interest payable amount.
Contractual cash flows
March 31, 2023 Carrying On Less than Between More than
amount one and Total
Demand ene year five years
five years
Borrowings* 42,303.30 - 4,524.13 17,795.81 40,500.63 62,820.57
Lease liability 3,288.75 “ 392.89 802.52 11,703.07 12 898 .48
Trade payables 117.98 - 117.98 - - 117.98
Other current financial 513.58 : 513.58 : : 513.58
liabilities
Total 46,223.61 - 5,548.58 18,598.33 52,203,70 76,350.61

* This includes Interest payable amount.

(iit) Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices. Market risk comprises two types of risk; interest rate risk and currency risk. Financial instruments affected
by market risk include borrowings and bank deposits.

(a) Foreign Currency Risk

The Company has international transactions and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from foreign currency
transactions. Foreign exchange risk arises from recognized assets and liabilities denominated in a currency that is not the

Company’s functional currency.

Foreign currency risk exposure:

Particular Currency March 31,2024 March 31, 2023
{INR) (INR)

Financial liabilities

Retention money payable UsD 19.13 18.87

Sensitivity
"The sensitivity of profit or loss to changes in the exchange rates arises mainly from foreign currency denominated financial
instruments,

Particular March 31, 2024 March 31, 2023
Increase by 5% 0.96 0.94
Decrease by 5% (0.96) (0.94)
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(b) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes
in market interest rates, The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the

Company’s long-term obligation with floating interest rate.
pany £

Exposure to interest rate risk

The Company’s interest rate risk arises majorly from the borrowings carrying variable rate of interest, This obligation
exposes the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. The exposure of the Company’s borrowing to interest rate changes as

reported to the management at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Variable-rate instruments

March 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Loan and bank borrowings*

Total

Interest rate sensitivity analysis

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of loans
and borrowings affected. With all other variables held constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the

impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars

Marceh 31, 2024

March 31, 2023

Increase by 0.5%%*

Decrease by 0.5%*

*The interest rate has been fixed @ 8.1% for Three years hence, the Company has no interest rate risk on it's loans and

borrowings.

(c) Price Risk

The Company’s exposure to price risk arises from investiments held and classified as FVTPL. To manage the price risk
arising from investments in mutual funds, the Company diversifies its portfolio of assets.

Price risk exposure:

Particular March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Financial assets measured at fair value through profit & Loss
Investment in Mutual fund 1,524.52 918.39

Sensitivity analysis

Profit or loss and equity is sensitive to higher/lower prices of instruments on the Company’s profit for the vear:

Particulars March 31, 2024 | March 31, 2023
Increase by 5% 76.22 45.92
Decrease by 5% (76.22) (45.92)
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44. Ratio analysis

Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-24 | 31-Mar-23 Yo Reason for
Change variance
Current ratio Current assets Current liabilities 2.21 370 {40.13%) Due to decrease in
current assets.
Total debt (current and | Shareholder’s equity Refer Note - 1
Debt- equity ratio | Non-cutrent {(Including loan from 1.89 2.30 {17.90%) below
borrowings) holding company)
Eamings  for  debt | Debt service = Total
service = WNet profit | finance cost
Debt service | after tax + Deferred tax | (excluding non-cash o Due to increase in
coverage ratio +  Finance cost + | expenses} + Due 2.07 L7l 2067% Profits
Depreciation and | Instalments as per
Amortisation Debt arrangements
Average
Re‘tum on equity Net profits after taxes sharehq]ders equity 15.22% 10.24% 48.66% Duc to increase in
ratio (including Loan from Profits
holding company)
Inventory . .
furmover ratio Cost of goods sold Average inventory Not Applicable
Tr?dc rcce':wable Total revenue from Avef'age trade 11.16 11.32 (1.42%)
turnover ratio coniract with customers | receivable
Trade p‘ayable Total other expenses Average trade 4.82 4,57 5.54%
turnover ratio payables
. " Working capital = oo .
Net 'capltal Total revenue from current . assels  — 301 118 118.03% Due to increase in
turnover ratio contract with customers e Revenue.
current liabilities
Net profit ratio Net profit after taxes To‘éi fevenue from 27.14% 18.33% 48.07% D}xe to Increase in
operations Profits
. i 1 =
Return on capital Earnings before t(;?]plitt?tle Tlr:tp \%:31 +
P interest, finance cost & ) 14.41% 12.33% 16.50%
employed . . debt + deferred tax
and taxes ('EBIT" o 1
liability
Betum " | Finance income investment Not Applicable
investment

Note 1 — Debt-Equity ratio as defined in financing documents is 2.69 (March 31, 2023: 2.81).
Debt — Project Loan (Current and Non-current Borrowings)
Equity — Paid up Share Capital and Unsecured loan from Holding Company for project.

45, The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule
3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 inserted by the Companies (Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring
companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software
which has a feature of recording audit trail of each and every transaction, creating an edit log of each change made in the
books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled.

The Company uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recording audit
trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated throughout the year for all relevani {ransactions recorded in the
accounting software. However, the audit trail (edit log) feature is not enabled at database level to log any direct data
changes. Further, there is no instance of audit trail feature being tampered with where such feature is enabled,

46. Other statutory information

(i) The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the
Company for holding any Benami property.
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(if)

(iif)
(iv)

)

i)

The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory

period.

The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto cutrency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), inciuding foreign
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf

of the company (Ultimate Beneticiaries) or

(i} provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party)
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

(i) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf

of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

(it) provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

The Company is in compliance with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Companies
Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017 (as amended).

(vii) The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey
or any other relevant provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961.

(viii) The Company has not been declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(ix) The Company has not been sanctioned a working capital limit by banks or financial institutions. Hence, the Company
is not required to file any quarterly return or statement with such banks or financial institutions.
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